

Dec. 2nd.
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the municipal office, Rocanville, with the Reeve in the chair, all members present.

The Returning Officer declared A.J. Calder elected as councillor for Division five of the Municipality.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of Councillor Campbell.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we do not proceed with the first applications arising out of tax liens registered in January 1938.

Application of A. Hemming deferred until next regular meeting Secretary instructed to write the Saskatoon General Hospital and deny liability for treatment of John Perreault and confirm our previous correspondence re Mrs. Sadie Sage.

The Following relief orders were passed by the Council as a whole, A. McLean Food Order \$ 12.00- Clothing order \$ 20.00, W. Connor \$ 5.00, Ida Kallio \$ 3.00, R. Fergusson \$ 5.00, Mrs. Mary Laine \$ 5.00, L. Perreault Food \$ 5.00, Clothing \$ 6.00 Application of N. Holmes left to Councillor Campbell to deal with at his discretion.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the balance of the crop of A.A. Heavie grown on S.W. 25 and S.E. 26-16-32, W1 be exempt from section 344 of the Rural Municipal Act " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the balance of the crop of Mrs. Nellie Goodman grown on the N.W. of 18-16-31, W1 be exempt from section 344 of the Rural Municipal Act." Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That we notify the Head Offices of the Saskatchewan Wheat Pool, The Federal Grain Co. and Parrish and Heimbecker that their local agents are not observing the provisions of Section 344 of the Act " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the committee appointed to look after the implements on the N.E. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 33-16-33, W1 endeavour to make a final disposition of same" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we defer consideration of a further grant to the Salvation Army until the first meeting in the New Year " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That Dr. R.G. Miller be paid a further \$ 200.00 on his arrears of salary as soon as finances

permit" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase" That the following accounts be

passed and paid" Cd.

Aaron Salo	\$ 2.25	Sask. Assoc.
Sask. Assoc. of R.Ms.	8.26	
N. Hudon	2.70	
Roc. Co-Op . Assoc.	215.03	
Rocanville Record	4.04	
Petty cash Accounts	2.74	
L. Campbell -Supervision	31.91	
H.C. Watson "	17.29	
C.F. Chase	28.00	
Jno. Heap	27.00	
A.J. Calder	30.25	
S.A. Petays	19.95	

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we now adjourn to meet
on Monday Jan. 6th, 1941 at 2 P.M.

David L Wilson, Pres.
Thomas, Sec. Treas.

Nov. 18th.
1940

The Annual meeting of the ratepayers of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 was held in the Auditorium of the Farmers Building, Rocanville, with the Reeve in the chair and an attendance of 45 ratepayers.

The Reeve called the meeting to order at 2P.M.

The minutes of the last annual meeting were then read and approved on motion of T.G.Reed and Byron Chase.

Arising out of last years meeting, the following matters were discussed the Grasshopper campaign, equine encephalomyelitis section 344 of the Rural Municipality Act, the advisability of a more strenuous collection campaign with regards more especially to 1935,36,37 and 1938 seed grain liens

The Financial statement for the first ten months of the year was then read and considered and finally adopted on motion of A. Stracey and J.Kingdon.

Inspectors report read and ~~discussed~~ discussed and adopted on motion of T.G.Reed and W.J.Arnold .

It was moved by J.L.Kingdon and W.R.Talmay" That we Council be requested to take the necessary steps to declare a close season for weasels, this motion was carried with 12 voting for and 6 against.

There was considerable discussion about medical relief, hospitalisation and kindred matters and the Saskatchewan State Hospital and Medical League, which is endeavouring to introduce into the province a scheme of medical, surgical and hospital aid along the same basis as the Saskatchewan Anti T.B. League is now operated, the suggestion being that the Council affiliate with the League, send a delegate or delegates to its next annual convention and form a local committee to bring the aims of the League before the public.

It was moved by John Robertson and A.Stracey" That we recommend that this municipality affiliate with the Saskatchewan State Medical and Hospital League" Cd.

At 4 P.M. the returning officer declared the meeting open to receive nomination for Reeve and for Councillor for each of Divisions 1, 3 and 5.

At 5 P.M. local Time, the returning officer declared D.L. Wilson elected Reeve by acclamation and L.Campbell and C.F.Kahse Chase elected by acclamation for Divisions one and three respectively as there were two nominations in division five ~~it was not~~

namely A.J. Calder and Barney Kaplum, it was announced that a Poll would be held for Division five at the Carnoustie Carnoustie Community Hall on Monday November 25th. at 9 A.M. Mountain Standard time (10 A.M. local time)

After addresses by the Reeve and the Councillors present the meeting adjourned on motion of W.J. Arnold.

Nov. 4th
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office at Rocanville, with the Reeve in the chair, all members present except Councillor Watson. Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of Councillor Petays.

Correspondence re arrears of hail tax against the North half and S.E. of 23-16-30, W1 read and it was moved by Councillor Calder " That we take no further action in the matter " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That an exemption certificate covering all the balance of the crop grown on the East half of 17-17-32, W1 on condition that the owner agrees to assume responsibility for payment of his wives proposed medical surgical and hospital expenses " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That we defer decision on first applications under the tax enforcement Act until the next regular meeting in order to get advice as to payment of Public Revenue involved " Cd.

Secretary instructed to take up with the Director of Relief the application of A.M. Hokanson

Secretary instructed to issue the following relief orders for November

W. Connor-\$5.00; R. Fergusson- \$5.00, A. McLean-\$6.00; Mrs. Ida Kallio- \$3.00; Mrs. Mary Laine-\$5.00; L. Perreault-\$ 5.00.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That we offer Mrs. Ida Kallio \$ 20.00 for a right of way off the N.E. corner of the N.E. 1/4 of 2-18-33, W1 being 44 yards by 66 yards, provided she has title to the land and gives a legal transfer, otherwise offer to pay her a yearly rental of \$2.00 " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That we make a grant of \$5.00 to the Carnoustie Cemetery Board " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That this Council approve the assessment of the Municipality as recently made by Mr. R. Trealeven and the manner in which it was conducted, Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That we table the request of the Salvation Army for a further grant for further consideration " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That we accept the proposals of the Board of Review under the Farmers Creditors Arrangement Act 1934 relative to L. Gagnon and G.L. Malcolm " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the Financial Statement for the

month ending September 30th. as read be approved " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That the following accounts be paid" Cd.

Rocanville Record	5.97
R.C.Merifield	14.00
S.Schwanz	10.93
W.W.Palmer	3.00
N.P.Hewgill	11.91
J.D.Mercer - Petty cash accounts	11.75

Moved by Councillor Petays " That we now adjourn to meet on Monday Dec. 2nd. at 2cP.M.

David L Wilson

Sept. 30
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office at Rocanville at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair, all members present.

Minutes of last regular meeting and special meeting of Aug. 28th. read and approved on motion of The Deputy Reeve.

Mr. D. McKenzie interviewed the council relative to arrears of hail taxes on the N $\frac{1}{2}$ & S.E. of 23-16-30, W1, accrued against the land during the occupancy of W. Vipond and it was moved by Councillor ~~Campbell~~ "That in consideration of Mr. W. McKenzie agreeing to pay the 1937 levy and penalty accrued thereon, the council endeavour to collect the unpaid balance being the 1933, 1934, 1935 and 1936 hail tax with penalties accrued and if necessary place the account in the hands of a collector2" Moved by the Deputy Reeve ~~and seconded by~~ " That we accept the sum of \$ 460.00 in full payment of all arrears of taxes against the South half of 25-16-31, W1, subject to the consent of the Minister of Municipal Affairs under section 212 of the Rural Municipality Act. It being further agreed that \$ 100.00 be paid on account of seed grain liens and that the 1940 taxes are paid " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase "That on payment of \$25.00, an exemption certificate be granted exempting the balance of the first quota of grain grown on the NE.13 and S.E.24-16-33, W1" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the whole of the first quota of grain grown on the W $\frac{1}{2}$ of 4 and the E $\frac{1}{2}$ of 5-17-32, W1 be exempted from the provisions of section 344" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That on payment of \$5.00 the whole of the first quota of grain on S.W.33-17-32 and S.E.5- 18-32 W1 be exempted from section 344" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " that all of the crop, Grown on the S.W. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 32-17-32, W1, excepting 10 bushels be exempted from section 344 " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That on payment of \$11.25, 1940 seed grain, all of the crop grown on the S.W.16-17-33, W1 be exempted from section 344 " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That on payment of \$ 11.25 1940 seed, the balance of the first quota grown on the S.W. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 10-16-30, W1 be exempted " Cd.

Consideration of first applications under the Tax Enforcement Act held over until next regular meeting.

Moved by Councillor Watson, " That subject to the consent of the Minister of Municipal Affairs, we allow a remission of 15 P.C. on the arrears against the North Half of 24 and the S.E. of 25-16-32, W1

Secretary instructed to issue relief orders of the value of \$5.00 each to W.Connor and R.Fergusson

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the secretary be appointed Returning officer for the Annual and Nomination meeting to be held on Monday the 18th. day of November and that the following Deputy Returning Officers and polling places be appointed" Cd.

Division one John Swanston Ferndale School

Division two Farmers Building/ Rocanville- D.Logan

Division three C.C.Hutchinson N.E.24-16-33, W1

Division four F.C.Dunsmore Oakknoll School

Division five R.Fergusson Carnoustie Community Hall

Division six John Knuuttila A.Polvis House

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That we order one set of the 1940 revised statutes of Saskatchewan " Cd

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That we pay \$75.00 in full settlement of account of Dr. McDiarmid for operation on Audrey Strong " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson, That the financial statement as read for the month ending August 30th. be approved" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we pay \$15.00 in settlement of Helen Palmers account re Mrs. R.Fergusson " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That we pay \$ 25.00 on Dr. Merifields account as rendered " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " that the following accounts be be passed and paid " Cd.

John Holding	\$4.75
Rocanville Record	41.82-
North American Lumber & Supply Co.	13.12 -
Nap Hudon	6.00 "
Petty cash accounts	8.52

Moved by Councillor Chase " That we now adjourn to meet on Monday Nov. 4th." Cd.

David L Wilson

James, Sec. Treas.

Aug.
28- 1940

A special meeting of the Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 was held in the Municipal Office, Rocanville of meeting the assessor, discussing with him the new assessment and either accepting, modifying or rejecting the assessment as presented.

The Reeve and all members of the Council were present.

After Mr. Trealeven has explained the methods used in determining the new valuations and making comparisons in the different divisions between the new and the old assessments, it was moved by the Deputy Reeve and Councillor Calder" That the Secretary be authorised to sign the certificate that the total assessable of all farm land exclusive of Crown Land leased for grazing purposes is \$ 1715115.00.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we now adjourn" Cd.

David H. Wilson

Aug. 26th. The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151

1940 met in the Municipal Office at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair
all members present.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of
Councillor Campbell.

Mr. Geo. Biden, representing the Bureau of Public Welfare, attended
the meeting, discussed the question of Direct Relief and informed
the Council that there would be no assistance given the municipality
by the Provincial Government in the coming season of 1940 & 1941.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the Secretary be authorised to
write all elevators concerned that the Municipality is willing
to accept one half of the amount of taxes, as shown on their lists,
out of the first quota, the remainder to be taken from the next
quota." Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That all work credits be applied on
on arrears of taxes or other indebtedness, where there is any and
not on the 1940 taxes" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That the Secretary be appointed Tax
Collector with instructions to endeavour to collect 25% of seed
grain liens prior to 1938 in conjunction with the elevator agents" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we defer decision on making first
application on ~~lien~~ tax liens registered Jan. 17th. 1938 until
the next regular meeting" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Peatys² That the members of the Council be
authorised to obtain the necessary signatures to the resolution re
unapplied 1933 roadwork credits in their respective divisions " Cd.

Moved By Councillor Calder" That subject to the consent of the
Minister of Municipal Affairs we accept the sum of \$500.00 in full
payment of Arrears of taxes due on S $\frac{1}{2}$ 25-16-31, W1 and \$100.00 in
payment of 1937 & 1938 seed grain liens" Cd.

Secretary instructed to issue the following relief orders for
September Geo. Plant \$5.00, R. Fergusson \$ 5.00, W. Connor \$ 5.00

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the financial statement for the
month ending July 31st. as read be approved" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That the following accounts be approved
and paid " Cd.

Paynters Ltd.	2.86
Sask. Assoc. of R.Ms.	39.11
Roc. Co-Op. Assoc.	511.00
Richardson Road Mach. Co.	1.99

S.A. Petays

4.72

Rocanville Record

12.24

Petty cash Accounts

11.12

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we now adjourn till 7.30 P.M?
At 7.30 P.M. the Council reassembled pursuant to adjournment
and discussed with the assessor appointed by the Assessment
Commission certain factors arising out of the new assessment,
after which it was moved by Councillor Calder that we now adjourn
to meet at 8 P.M. August 28th. for the purpose of finally approving
or amending the new assessment and further that the regular
meeting be held on Monday Sept. 30th. next.

David L Wilson

July 29th. The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151
1940 met in the municipal office at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair
and all members present except Councillor Chase, absent on
account of illness.

It was moved by Councillor Calder and carried unanimously" That
this meeting be held in lieu of the regular meeting of August 5th.
Minutes of last regular meeting read and adopted on motion of
Councillor Watson.

Secretary instructed to issue the following relief orders for
August. Mrs. Geo. Plante\$5.00, J.D.Godwin\$5.00, A.McLean \$ 10.00,
L.Perreault \$ 6.30, Dalton Strong\$ 6.00, R.Fergusson\$ 5.00.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That Jos. Tinnishs application for
relief assistance be left to Councillor Petays to be dealt with
at his discretion" Cd.

Moved by Counvillor Petays" That we defer appointment of Tax
Collector until the next meeting and alsodefer policy to be adopted
in collection of seed liens prior to 1939"Cd.

Receiving of petitions for formation of Pure Bred Sire Area and
T.B'. Areas Laid over .

Mr. A.Horsburgh, Secretary of the Rural Municipality of Moosomin
attended the meeting and laid before the Council a proposal for
the Moosomin Municbpality to complete the dug outs in this
municipality for \$35.00 per hole over and above the amount allowed
by the P.F.R.A. the councillors were requested to interview the
ratepayers affected and report how many would accept this propasal
by Saturday Aug. 2rd.

The Following resolution was moved by the Deputy Reeve and

Secnded by Councillor Calder and carried by unanimous consent

1. That in the opinion of this Council the average yield of wheat
in the townships described in this resolution will not be more
that 12 bushels per acre in 1940.

2. That in the opinion of this Council the average wheat yield in
each of the said townships is as stated below.

3. That in consequence therefor this Council requests the Provincial
Department of Agriculture to make application to the Prairie Farm
Assistance Branch of the Federal Peapartment of Agriculture, for
inclusion of the said townships in a bonus area, should the
provisions of the Act be declared operative in 1940

The Following Townships were included in the resolution

16 & 17 in Range 30; 17 in Range 31; 17 & 18 in Range 32; 17 & 18 in Range 33.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That we proceed to advertise the list of Arrears as laid before the meeting" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That on payment of 25% of the amount upto \$ 100.00, of 20% upto \$300.00 and 15 % on amounts over \$ 300.00, the parcel be deleted from the list and no lien be registered for this year " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we pay \$ 1.00 per hour for Fordsons and small tractors under 15-30 H.P.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" that we grant \$5.00 to Welwyn Homemakers towards upkeep of cemetery" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That the following accounts be paid" Cd.

Sask. Assoc. of Rural Municipalities(Supplies)	12.14
" " " " Financial Statement	30.28
Secretary convention expenses	25.00
Standard Business Machines	10.81
Petty Cash account	2.43

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we now adjourn to meet on Monday August 26th. at 2 P.M." Cd.

David L Wilson. Reeve.

July
8th.
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair, all members present except Councillor Watson. Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the Following food orders be issued for July" Cd.

A. McLean	10.00
L. Perreault	6.30
D. McRae	5.00
R. Fergusson	6.00
J. D. Godwin	5.00

The Deputy Reeve reported for the committee appointed to arrange for the cultivation of the S.W. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 34-16-31, W1 and it-aws was moved by Councillor Campbell" That J.W. Watson be paid \$35.00 by cheque and a credit on his seed-grain indebtedness for \$35.00 ^{on any clearing} in payment of ~~cultivating~~ 100 acres " Cd.

The Tile committee reported" That no arrangements has been made to make any more tile, but would do so in the event of there being any need for more.

The timber committee reported " That they had arranged with the Rocanville Co-Operative Association to order the plank required

Appointment of Tax Collector deferred until next regular meeting.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the office be closed for Wednesday, ~~Thru~~ Thursday and Friday of this week to enable the office to be cleanded and redecorated.

Mr. L. Hutchison of the Department of Agriculture attended the meeting and explained fully the proceedings necessary to establish a Pure Bred Sire Area and a restricted area for the eradication of Bovine Tuberculosis

Moved by Councillor Chase that we proceed to obtain the necessary petitions in Connection with the establishment of the areas "

The Complaint of O.G. Tyfisher relative to the ploughing up of certain road allowances was left to Councillor Calder to investigate The Deputy Reeve reported that the complaint of stones piled on certain road allowances had been investigated and he advised that the matter be left over for further consideration.

Moved by Councillor Chase" That the Secretary be granted leave of absence to attend the Convention to be held on the 11th & 12th. and that his necessary expenses be paid" Cd.

Moved by Councillr Calder " That the financial statement for the

month ending June 30th. as read be approved " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the following accounts be paid"

John Holding	41.30
Nap Hudson	18.75
Joan of Are Home	2.55
Drs. Ferg and Chestnut	13.00

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we now adjourn to meet on
Monday August 5th." Cd.

David L Wilson Rem
J. M. M. Sec. Treas.

June 3.
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Picanville, No. 151
sat as a Court of Revision on Monday June 3rd. at 10 P.M. to hear
and consider appeals against the current years assessment.

There were only two appeals, as follow

Location	Ground of Appeal	Decision
N.W.4-16-31	Classification- Change 90 acres of B1 to Class 2	
N $\frac{1}{2}$ of 22-17-31	Classification	Not sustained

Moved by Councillor Watson" That the Secretary be authorised to
amend the roll accordingly.

Moved by Councillor Campbell² That the Court of Revision now
proceed
adjourn and we w~~proceed~~ proceed with the business of the regular meeting" Cd.

All members being present with the Reeve in the chair, the
Minutes of the last regular meeting were read and approved on
motion of Councillor Calder.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That the following relief orders
be issued for June, viz John Domaslai, 7.00, A. McLean 12.00,
L. Perreault, 6.30, R. Shoplund- 8.00, D. McRae- 5.00, R. Fergusson-10.00,
J. F. Godwin- 6.00" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That we accept the pr~~propos~~posal for
settlement of 1933 unapplied work credits as suggested in the
letter from the Department of Municipal Affairs dated May 14th. 1940
Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That in cases where there is any
indebtedness to the municipality either for taxes or seed grain
relief, the amounts payable in settlement of 1933 unapplied work
credits be applied on such indebtedness" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we now adjourn till 1.30 P.M.
At 1.30 P.M. the Council met pursuant to adjournment.

The matter of further distribution of seed oats was then discussed
and the Secretary was instructed not to accept any more applications
or issue any more orders" cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder, That the Reeve, the Deputy Reeve and
~~Councillor Calder~~
Councillor ~~Calder~~ be a committee with full authority to make such
arrangements for the cultivation of the S.W. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 34-16-31 " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That we make a further payment to
the school districts on or before June 20th. of the amounts
set out in the list attached to the minutes of this meeting" Cd.
The estimated receipts and expenditures, being the 1940 buget
a copy of which is attached to and forms part of the minutes of this
meeting was considered and adopted on motion of Councillor Calder

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That the rate for municipal purposes for the current Year be 4½ mills"

Amendment moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the municipal rate for the Current year be 5 Mills"

A vote on the amendment was taken and it was carried with 5 voting for and one against.

The motion as amended was then voted on and carried with 5 for and one against.

Moved by Councillr Calder " That the following divisional appropriation be approved, viz \$900.00 for each of divisions one, two and three and \$ 800.00 for each of divisions four, five and six " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase" That the Deputy Reeve and Councillor Watson be the tile committee and arrange to have whatever culverts are required made " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That O.S.Spurr be appointed as weed inspector to act at the call of the council " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That Councillors Watson and Calder be a committee to arrange for the purchase of whatever timber is necessary " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That this Council is not in favour of the proposed Superannuation Plan for Rural Municipal Secretary Treasurers at the present" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we Affiliate with the Saskatchewan State Hospital and Medical League"

^{Campbell}
Moved by Councillr-Calder " That we pay the Saskatoon City Hospital for the 14 days treatment of Mrs. F.Sage only as guaranteed" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That permission to fence the road allowance between the N.W. quarter of section 31-16-31 and the North East quarter of section 32-16-32, ^{see guarantee} W1 " Cd.

Secretary instructed to obtain a list of all approved uncompleted projects under the Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Act " Cd.

Moved by the Reeve " That Councillors Chase and The Deputy Reeve be a committee to investigate the [&]complaint of stones being placed on road allowances " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That no action be taken in regard to the request to build a road through and into the N.W.¼ of 21-17-32, ^{see} W1 " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That ~~the~~ request the Live Stock Branch of the Department of Agriculture to have a representative attend the

next regular meeting of the council to explain the necessary
preceedure to be taken in forming a PureBred Sire Area" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That the Following accounts be paid "Cd.

Dr. Gilbert	4.61
Nap Hudon	2.40
Dr. R.C.Merifield	25.00
Petty Cash Accounts	7.36

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we now adjourn to meet on July
8th. at 2 P.M." Cd.

David L. Wilson, *Pres.*
Homer. Sec. Treas.

Estimated Expenditures- 1940

Administration

Councillors Indemnity	550.00
Salary	1200.00
Collectors Expense	175.00
Legal	25.00
Audit	135.00
Travelling Expense	60.00
Elections	50.00
Stationery, Postage & Printing	370.00
Rent	300.00
Interest	800.00
Discount	1000.00
Sundry	500.00
Assessment	827.13

5792.13

Maintenance

Roads & Culverts	5100.00
Machinery Repair	200.00
Right of way leased	22.50
Workm ens Compensation Board	21.00

5343.50

Capital

Culverts	200.00
Machinery	300.00
	----- 500.00
Public Health	150.00

Grants, Relief, Etc.

Direct Relief	260.00
Indigent Relief	500.00
Grants	150.00
Anti T.B. League	615.00
Medical & Hospital Relief	700.00
Grant to Hospital	500.00
Joan of Arc Home	300.00
Neglected Children	180.00
Undertaker	100.00

~~3265.00~~

3305.00

Administration
Administration

~~Summary~~

~~5792.13~~

Summary

Administration	5792.13
Maintenance	5343.50
Capital	500.00
Public Health	150.00
Grants, Relief Etc.	3305.00

	15290.63
Unforeseen	460.00

	15750.63

Estimated Receipts

Sundry	500.00
Added Penalty	2366.00
Balance by taxation	12884.63 (12884.63)

	15750.63

May 6th.
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair, all members present.

Minutes of last regular and special meeting of April 22nd. read and approved on motion of Councillor Petays.

Moved by The Deputy Reeve" That Dr. R.C.Merifield be appointed Health Officer till the end of the present year for the sum of \$35.00 " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That we pay Mrs. W.Miller \$25.00 on account of Arvo Salo" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the Reeve and Secretary Treasurer be authorised to sign a note in favour of the relief ^{branch} department of the Department of Agriculture for \$750.00, the proceeds of the loan to be used in distributing seed oats in urgent cases that no more than 25 bushels be allotted to a quarter section and not more than 40 bushels to any applicant, where he is farming more than a quarter section" Cd.

It was decided to leave the selection of recipients to the councillors in their respective divisions, with the understanding that the price should be set at 45 cents per bushel, a list of approved applicants was drawn up, which is attached to and ^{forms} ~~forms~~ part of the minutes of this meeting.

Moved by Councillor Campbell " That the secretary be instructed to issue relief orders for the month of May as per the amended list in the relief ledger, as soon as definite word is received that the Provincial Government undertakes to pay 80% of the May relief, but not before" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That we ask the Provincial Government for authority to make full settlement of the 1933 unapplied roadwork credits with the ratepayers of this municipality on a fifty per cent basis, providing that the Provincial Government makes a full settlement with the Municipality of \$1518.10, which is fifty per cent of the credits unapplied at this date, the form of resolution submitted by the Provincial Government being unacceptable to the council" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we lease the North Half of 36-17-31, W1 to S.Sararas for a further term of 5 years from April 1st. 1940 at an annual rental of \$15.00, the lease to be subject to sale by the Municipality " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That as the Provincial Tax Commission will not authorise a discount of more than 20% on Public Revenue taxes due on the N.E. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 26-16-31, W1, the municipality absorb the difference of 8.10 affecting Public Revenue in the compromise Resolution " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we do ^{not} comply with the request conveyed in the letter from H.S. McCutcheon of May 3rd." Cd

Moved by Councillor Petays" That we approve the list of withdrawals submitted by the Saskatchewan Municipal Hail Insurance Association

Moved by Councillor Calder" That the Secretary be the official appointed to collect crop reports under Clause 1A of the Hail Insurance Act " Cd.

At 6 P.M. It was moved by Councillor Watson " That we now adjourn until ⁷ P.M.

At 7 P.M. the council resumed the business of the meeting pursuant to adjournment.

Moved by Councillor Petays Campbell" That we lease the N.E. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 35-16-30 W1 to Paul Gagnon on the following terms for a period of 2 years, that he summerfallow the cultivated land in the current year and deliver one quarter of the crop grown in 1941 as rent " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That we lease the S.E. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 16-17-30 to L. Gagnon for the year 1940 with an option to purchase in the fall on a further payment of \$ 85.00, he making a cash payment of \$30.00" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That we donate \$50.00 to the Red Shield drive of the Salvation Army " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That the Secretary be authorised to order one copy of the 1940 amendments to the statutes " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we pay the balance of the 1939 grant to the Moosomin General Hospital " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That we sell that portion of the North half of 4-18-31, W1 to R.I. Donaldson South of the Qu'Appelle River to R.I. Donaldson for \$35.00" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we do not loan the grasshopper mixer " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we agree to the compromise of L. Gagnons indebtedness as suggested by the Debt Adjustment Board" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase" That the financial statement for the month ending April 30th. as read be approved " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That the following accounts be be paid" Cd.

O.S.Spurr	11.00
M.W.Campbell	12.26
Sask. Assoc. of R.Ms.	11.69
Commercial Printers Ltd.	4.18
Recanville Record	10.77
Richardson Road Machinery Co.	7.91
A.Cameron	8.00
C.P.R.	1.10
North American Lumber & Supply Co.	9.77
April Petty Cash Accounts	10.29

Moved by The Deputy Reeve " That we now adjourn to meet ~~on~~ at 10 P.M. on June 3rd. at 10 A.M." Cd.

g. J. M. Sec. Treas.

April 22
1940

A special meeting of the Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 was held with the Reeve and all Councillors present.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That this council unanimously agrees to waive statutory notice of this special meeting pursuant to Section 30 of the Rural Municipality Act" Cd.

Meeting called by Mr. George Biden to consider further the matter of providing seed oats.

After thoroughly discussing the matter it was moved by Councillor Watson " That this meeting approve the necessary Bylaw to authorise the municipality to borrow from the Provincial Government the sum of \$ 750.00 to be used in providing seed oats if it is finally decided at the next regular meeting of the council to make use of the Bylaw" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That we now adjourn" Cd.

David L Wilson, Reeve

James, Sec. Treas.

April 1st. 1940 The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville, at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair, all members present.

Minutes of Last regular meeting read and approved on motion of Councillor Campbell.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That Bylaw No. 47, to ~~dispense~~ ^{repeal} with the mailing of ~~tax~~ notices in 1940 be read a third time and finally passed" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That appointment of Health Officer be again deferred until the next regular meeting" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the following applications for relief be approved, C.Desjarlais 7.50, I.Polvi 12.00 and that increases be granted for the month of April as follow Geo.

Fraser from 10.00 to 15.00, R.Perreault from 5.00 to 7.00,

John Domaslai from 8.50 to 10.50," Cd .

Secretary instructed to issue order s to L.Perreault for 6.30, W.Perreault ~~6.30~~ 7.65. Jas. Hood \$5.00.

Further consideration of Arvo Salos case be deferred until next regular meeting.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That an allowance of \$7.00 per month be made to Mrs. Mary Bonar with the understanding that T.G.Reed undertakes to be responsible for all medical and hospital expenses which may have to be incurred on her behalf" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the Reeve and Secretary Treasurer be authorised to sign the resolution covering remission of taxes on the N.E. $\frac{1}{4}$ of 26-16-31, W1" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we sell warble fly powder at 40 cents per can or 2 for 75 cents " Cd .

After the delegates to the municipal convention had reported on their interview with regard to supplying seed and seeding supplies it was moved by the Deputy Reeve " That owing to the financial condition of the municipality and its present indebtedness for seed and seeding supplies, this council does not deem it advisable to supply seed this spring " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That the resolution received from the Department of Municipal Affairs relative to application of road work credits be considered at the next general meeting, after further information has been received" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That The Deputy Reeve and Councillor Watson be the 1940 assessment committee" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the Court of Revision be held on Monday June 3rd. next" Cd.

Secretary instructed to communicate with S.Sararas re renewal of lease on North half of 36-17-31, W1

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we accept A.L.Morrison's offer of compromise on the East half of 3-16-33, W1" Cd.subject to the approval of the Minister of Municipal Affairs and that the Reeve and Secretary Treasurer be authorised to sign the resolution covering the compromise" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we approve Mrs. A.Bellehemeurs application for maternity grant" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That this Council agrees to maintain and keep in repair that portion of the Wapella- Hazelcliffe road running through this municipality after the said road has been rounded up and put into shape by the Department of Highways" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we waive that portion of the seizure made on the goods and Chattels of H.S.McCutcheon relative to taxes and that the auctioneer be instructed to pay to the municipality the amount necessary to pay the 1937 and 1938 seed indebtedness" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we pay the Brandon General Hospital \$ 87.50, care and maintenance of Molly Fraser" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That a grant of \$5.00 be made to the Rocanville Junior Calf Club" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the financial statement for the month ending Feb. 29th. be approved as read " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the following accounts be paid"Cd.

Doctor H.O.McDiarmid re Molly Fraser	50.00
H.C.Watson	30.00
C.F.Chase	25.00
Saskatchewan Association of R.Ms.	27.03
Petty cash accounts for March	5.54

Moved by Councillor Petays " That we adjourn to meet again on Monday May, 6th..

David L Wilson
former Sec. Treas.

A Special meeting of the Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 was called by the Reeve for the purpose of making up with Mr. Geo. Biden, Relief Inspector increased relief and reviewing new applications and also to authorise the Secretary to distrain on the goods and Chattels of H.S. McCutcheon so as to realise the amount owing by the said H.S. McCutcheon for taxes and seed grain and supplies, the meeting was called for Wednesday the sixth day of March at 10 P.M. and there were present the Reeve, the Deputy Reeve, Councillors Campbell and Calder.

All applications to date were reviewed and passed and increases made in former applications, as per ^{Relief} ~~seed grain~~ ledger entries. Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the Secretary be authorised to to distrain on the goods and chattels of H.S. McCutcheon in order to realise an amount sufficient to pay arrears of taxes and his indebtedness for 1937 & 1938 seed grain ^{Supplies} and that A. Cameron be appointed our bailiff in this regard" Cd.

12.30
At 12.30 The Council adjourned on Motion of Councillor Calder
to-meet-on-Monday-

David L Wilson

Forrester, Sec. Treas.

March 4th. The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville No. 151
1940

met in the municipal office, Rocanville at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair, all members present.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of Councillor Petays.

The Secretary reported that the result of the crop revision of Township Seventeen in Range Thirty three was that the average of the wheat crop all over the Township was 17.12 bushels to the acre; this report was received on motion of Councillor Campbell

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That Bylaw No. 48, a Bylaw to provide for the extermination of grasshoppers and other insect pests be read three times and passed by unanimous consent of the council" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That Bylaw No. 47, to dispense with the mailing of assessment notices in 1940 be read a first and Second time" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That appointment of Health Officer be again deferred until the next regular meeting " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That Aron Salos request for assistance in meeting the cost of treatment for his son Arvo be referred to the relief inspector " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That we write Mr. W.E. Jopp" That the Council will accept the sum of \$400.00 in full payment of Taxes on the N.E. 1/4 of 26-16-31, W1 till Dec. 31st. 1939, provided the Minister of Municipal Affairs consents to the compromise? Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That a notice be inserted in the Record drawing the attention of the ratepayers to the necessity of early control of Warble Fly " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we donate \$5.00 to the Finnish Relief Fund " Cd.

The delegation appointed by a ratepayers meeting to interview the Dominion Minister of Agriculture reported that they had not been able to interview him, but had taken the matter of seed and seeding supplies up with Mr. Procter and were informed that

by request of the municipality arrangements could be possibly made to have the Provincial Government guarantee a bank loan, it was decided to lay the whole matter over until after the municipal convention.

Secretary instructed to write the Director of Relief, denying liability for W. Perreault, as he has been away from this municipality for over twelve months and has been selfsupporting in that time. Moved by Councillor Chase" That a grant of \$10.00 be made to the tantallon Agricultural Society for the calf show" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That the following accounts be passed and paid" Cd.

Rocanville Record	5.98
Department of Telephones	16.00
A.M. Nairn	1.03
Petty cash accounts	5.03

Moved by The Deputy Reeve that we now adjourn" to meet on Monday April 1st. at 2 P.M.

David L Wilson

Feb. 5th. The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151
1940

met in the Municipal Office at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair
all members present.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of
Councillor Chase.

Correspondence in connection with Township Seventeen, Range
~~Thirty~~ Thirty three, W1 and Farm Bonus read and considered and
it was decided that arrangements should be made for a revision
to be made in the township, the arrangements for the revision
being left in the hands of Councillor Petays.

The Following relief orders were approved by the council as a
whole.

O. Haydyn	Clothing - 20.00
S. N. Kivella	Food 7.50

Secretary instructed to continue food orders for I. McLeod and
H. B. Park.

requested the council
A delegation from the Hilburn School District to guarantee
payment of one half of the arrears of unpaid levies, the
Council informed the delegation that it would not be possible
to make any definite promise to pay the amount requested but
that their request would receive the same consideration as
the other schools in the municipality.

then
Moved by Councillor " That a grant of \$5.00 be made to the
Wapella Calf Club" Cd.

Secretary instructed to write Department of Agriculture and
enquire whether a grasshopper test was made in the municipality
last fall and ask for the necessary form of bylaw for
grasshopper control.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the handling of Chick Vaccine
be left to the local druggist" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That Councillors Watson and Chase
be delegates to the municipal convention at Saskatoon " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the action of the Reeve in
guaranteeing surgical account of Molly Fraser to the extent of
\$ 50.00 be confirmed " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That accounts of Dr. Richards and
Dr. Berg for operation on Mrs. Langley, amounting to \$ 25.00
each be paid " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we renew our subscription
to the Municipal Record " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That the following accounts
be paid" Cd.

Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities	\$7.44
F.E.Smith	9.80
J.D.Mercer- Petty cash accounts	5.03

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we now adjourn to meet
on Monday, March 4th. at 2P.M.

David L Wilson

Jan. 24
1940

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville at 2 P.M. with the Reeve in the chair, all members present.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of the Deputy Reeve.

A delegation from the East Rocanville Rural Telephone Company requested the council to make provision for payment to the Company of special levy \$ 133.00 and a \$200.00 payment on their debenture levy. The Council assured the delegation, that this payment would be provided in the 1940 estimates, if at all possible to do so.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That a grant of \$25.00 be made to the Rocanville Branch of the Canadian Red Cross Society.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That a grant of \$25.00 be made to the Rocanville Farmers Ltd. to towards the upkeep of the Rest Room.

The question of having the N.E. block of township Sixteen in Range thirty one, W1 included in the Farm Bonus Plan was thoroughly discussed and it was decided to take the matter up with our member, the Minister of Municipal Affairs and the Dominion representative in Saskatchewan of the Prairie Farm Assistance Act, at the same time stressing the fact that in the opinion of the Council the average of the wheat cropn all over the municipality was under 12 bushels to the acre.

There were a number of ratepayers from Division Six present, asking that Tp. 17 and Tp. 18 in Range 33 be included in the Farm Bonus Plan, stating that if these townships should be eligible and if included, the bonus would be used to buy feed and seed , as otherwise provision would have to be made to supply feed and seed in these townships. Secretary instructed to phone the Superintendent of the Act at Regina and find out whether these townships would be included or not.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the Reeve, The Deputy Reeve, Councillors Watson and Calder be a committee to work with the Village Council in the matter of arranging to establish another Doctor.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That John Heap be re- appointed Deputy Reeve for the ensuing year" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the date for regular meetings be the first Monday in each month, except when that day falls on a holiday" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the indemnity for Reeve and Councillors for attending meetings be \$ 4.00 for Reeve and \$ 3.00 for Councillors per meeting, with mileage at 10 cents per mile for distance travelled to and from meetings and that mileage for supervision be 7 cents per mile, supervision time to be same as paid for indemnity " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the council as a whole be the official board of health " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That the Reeve along with the individual councillor for each division be a committee to carry out the duties imposed on the council under subs. ~~9~~ ²³² 9 of section ~~2302~~ the Rural Municipality Act, being care of the sick and destitute " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the Reeve, the Deputy Reeve and Councillor Chase be the 1940 Relief Committee " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That the following scale of wages be set for the current year, viz, 30 cents per hour for labour, 35 cents per hour for foreman to include graderman, 45 cents for two horse team, 60 cents for four horse team, 2.00 for engines upto and including 15-30 and 2.50 per hour for 35 H.P. engines and over" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the following poundkeepers be appointed " Cd.

N.Bell	Division 1	26-16-30, W1
A.H.Wyatt	Division 2	24-16-31, W1
W.W.Goodman	" "	14-16-32, W1
C.C.Hutchinson	Division 3	23-16-33, W1
J.Cantin	Division 4	20-17-30, W1
W.Williamson	Division 5	18-17-32, W1
W.Polvi	Division 6	15-17-33, W1

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we defer appointment of Medical Health Officer until the next regular meeting" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we ~~defer~~ appoint F.J.Hewgill auditor for 1940" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we renew our affiliation with the Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell "That we apply to the Minister of Municipal Affairs for consent to accept \$ 95.00 in full payment of all taxes on the N.W.22-17-30, W1, upto Dec. 31st. 1939, the same being a remission \$ 20.87 cents " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the five per cent penalty on arrears be not applied until April 1st, next " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That the account of R.C.Hedges for medicine supplied to Rhodes baby amounting to \$ 15.70 be paid" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Campbell" That we pay Dr. Miller \$200.00 on arrears of salary as soon as funds are available " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the necessary resolutions authorising the borrowing of \$5000.00 for municipal purposes and \$10000.00 for schools be from the Bank of Toronto be approved "

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That a grant of \$50.00 be made to the Salvation Army for War Service Work " Cd.

The Following new direct relief applications were approved by the council as a whole.

Applicant	Food per month	Clothing for season
Edward Haydyn	5.70	10.00
Mrs. Gabriel Knuuttila	5.00	10.00
R. Fergusson	12.15	25.00
Geo. Fraser	10.00	Nil

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the following accounts be paid " Cd.

Andy B. Arthur	3.00
Rocanville Record	4.38
Paynters Ltd.	35.70
Sask. Assoc. of R.Ms	46.26
L. Campbell	1.52
S. Schwanz	12.16
J.D. Mercer(Petty cash accounts)	11.48

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we now adjourn to meet on Monday Feb. 5th. at 2 P.M.